
 

ADDENDUM NO. 1 

Albany Park Stormwater Diversion Tunnel 

 

CDOT PROJECT NUMBER: E-2-522 

SPECIFICATION NO. 126930 

 

For which bids will be opened in the office of the Department of Procurement Services, 

Room 103, Chicago, Illinois, 60602 on August 4, 2015 is rescheduled to August 27, 2015 

at 11:00 a.m. Central Time.  

 

BIDDERS WILL ACKNOWLEDGE RECIEPT OF THIS ADDENDUM IN THE 

SPACE PROVIDED ON THE PROPOSAL PAGE 

 

NOTICE OF ADDENDUM OF CONTRACT DOCUMENTS 

 

ADDENDUM NUMBER 1 

 

SPECIFICATIONS 

 

1. In Book 3, under Table of Contents, page TOC 4, delete the following items 

under Appendices heading:  This information is provided in the drawing set. 

 

“Bore Hole Logs       18 

East Foster Bridge       13 

West Foster Bridge       13 

MWRD As-Builts       7” 

 

2. In Book 3, under Section 01025 – Measurement and Payment, delete paragraph 

1.01 K.1 and insert the following revised paragraph:  

 

“1. Measurement: Cubic Yards (CY) – Measurement for EXCAVATION 

AND DISPOSAL OF CONTAMINATED SOIL MATERIAL will be based on 

the cubic yards of special waste excavated from the project site, measured in situ 

(prior to excavation), tested, properly handled, and disposed of at an approved 

landfill.” 

 

3. In Book 3, under Section 01301 – Schedule of Values, delete paragraph 1.05 

A.1.b and insert the following revised paragraph: 

 

“b. Inlet shaft and structure shall be broken down as follows: 

1. Inlet shaft excavation 

2. Inlet structure excavation 

3. Removal and Disposal of Stockpiled Material 

4. Sheet pile installation  

5. Inlet shaft concrete placement 



6. Inlet channel concrete placement 

7. Mechanical work  

8. Electrical work  

9. Instrumentation and control” 

4. In Book 3, under Section 01301 – Schedule of Values, delete paragraph 1.05 

A.1.c. and insert the following revised paragraph: 

 

“c. Outlet shaft and structure shall be broken down as follows: 

1. Outlet shaft excavation 

2. Outlet structure excavation 

3. Removal and Disposal of Stockpiled Material 

4. Sheet pile installation  

5. Outlet shaft concrete placement 

6. Outlet structure concrete placement 

7. Mechanical work including pumps and drives  

8. Control building including design, supply, and installation 

9. Electrical / Instrumentation and control” 

5. In Book 3, under Section 01535 – Settlement Monitoring, add the following 

sentence to paragraph 1.01 C.2.: 

 

“Settlement monitoring program requirements for the tunnel excavation in Foster 

Avenue shall be limited to major facilities within the right-of-way of Foster 

Avenue.”  

 

6. In Book 3, under Section 02330 – Tunnel and Shaft Grouting, delete the first 

sentence of paragraph 1.01 D.5 and replace it with the following: 

 

“a.  Contact grouting for concrete lining will be performed as necessary and as 

shown on the Drawings and to reduce the total amount of inflow into the tunnel 

and shafts to 10 gpm, but will not be measured for payment.” 

 

7. In Book 3, under Section 03300 – Cast-in-Place Concrete, delete the first sentence 

of paragraph 1.04 C.11 and replace it with the following: 

 

“a.  Provide thermal control plan as outlined in ACI-301-10 Section 8.1.3 for each 

mix design where concrete placement thickness of 28 inch or greater.” 

 

8. In Book 3, under Section 09960 – Protective Coatings, delete paragraph 3.13 

COATING SYSTEM SCHEDULE, FERROUS METAL, NOT GALVANIZED 

and insert the following revised paragraph: 

 

3.13 COATING SYSTEM SCHEDULE, FERROUS METAL - NOT GALVANIZED 



 

 Item Surface Prep. System No. 

FM-1 All surfaces indoors/ 

outdoors, exposed 

piping in Control 

House, and ornamental 

fencing for Outlet 

Structure. 

Commercial blast 

cleaning SSPC SP6 

(1)  Alkyd Enamel 

FM-2 All exposed sheet piles, 

structural steel; waler, 

beams, and struts. 

Commercial blast 

cleaning SSPC SP10 

(102) VOC-Limited 

polymide epoxy  

FM-3 Surfaces of equipment 

and ferrous surfaces 

submerged or 

intermittently 

submerged in potable 

water, utility water, and 

wastewater including 

all surfaces lower than 

2 feet above high water 

level in hydraulic 

structures, and all 

surfaces inside 

enclosed hydraulic 

structures and vents 

(excluding shop-coated 

valves, couplings, 

pumps). 

White metal blast 

cleaning SSPC SP 

5/NACE 1 

(102) VOC-Limited 

polymide epoxy  

FM-4 Buried Pipes Commercial blast 

cleaning SSPC SP6 

(205) polyethylene  

 

9. In Book 3 following the Geotechnical Data Report, add the attached Hydraulic 

Report as an Appendix.     

 

DRAWINGS 

1. Delete Drawings S201, S202 and S205 and replace with revised Drawings 

S201R1, S202 R1 and S205R1 (attached). 

 

CLARIFICATION NO 1 

 

1. Question: Kenny Construction Company has invested a lot of time and effort into 

bids out of state. I recognized all the GC’s at the Pre- Con and they are in the 

same position as we are (out of state bids). It just so happens that all the out of 

state bid dates fall within a few days of each and the Albany Park bid date is at the 

same time. Moving the bid date could allow more bidders and more competitive 



bids. Kenny Construction Company is requesting the bid date be moved to August 

18, 2015, in order to give its best effort. Please advise. 

 

Answer:  Bid opening has been rescheduled for August 27, 2015, 11:00 AM 

Central Time. 

 

2. Question: Is the 300' radius at the Inlet and Outlet Shafts going to remain at 300', 

as the radius is typically 500' on most other city projects where blasting is 

involved.  

 

Answer:  If Blasting will be used for construction of the shafts, the provisions of 

Section 02210 – Use of Explosives, Noise, and Vibration Control apply.   As 

specified in Part 3, paragraph 3.02, the contractor is required to perform a 

preconstruction inspection of properties within a calculated radius (a minimum of 

500 feet is required).  The contractor must also meet all requirements of the 

Public Awareness Program. 

 

3. Question: For the 200' from each side of connecting tunnel centerline alignment.  

There are a lot of buildings that are in that 200' radius, but extend well past that 

200' range (especially at North Park University). Are we to assume that if a 

portion of the building is in the 200' range, that the whole building should be 

considered within the 200'? If the whole building is not to be documented, then 

what portion of it should be?  

 

Answer: Only structures or portions of structures within the distances defined in 

Sections 01532 and 02210 are required to be surveyed/inspected.   If the 

contractor wishes to include the entire structure for its own protection, it may do 

so. 

 

4. Question: In Specification 01025 - Excavation and Disposal Of Contaminated 

Soil Material, Article 1.01.k.1 states” Measurement  for soil material will be 

based on the cubic yards of special wasted excavated from project site, tested, 

properly handled and disposed of at an approve landfill.” Q1.1: Please clarify how 

measurement of soil will be executed. Will it be measured in situ prior to 

excavation or will it be measured after soil has been excavated?  Typically 

contaminated waste is measured and paid for by weight and not by volume. 

 

Answer:  See Item 2. 

 

5. Question: In specification 01301 – Schedule of Values, Article 1.05.A.1.b. 

Minimum detail breakdown. 

 

Q2.1. What is the meaning of “Removal? 

Q2.2 What is the meaning of “Stockpile”? 

Q2.3 Define Startup? 

 

Answer: See Items 3 and 4. 

 



6. Question: In Specification 01535 – Settlement Monitoring, Article 1.01.C.2 

states “the Contractor shall develop a settlement monitoring program for all 

permanent structures, any buried utilizes larger than 12 inches in diameter, all 

natural gas pipelines, any additional structure that is within a horizontal distance 

of 1.5 times the depth of any excavation deeper than 5 feet.  Q3.1: With the 

average depth of the tunnel at being 150 ft., the area to be monitored would be 

225 ft. on either side of tunnel centerline. This area would include over 100 

buildings and undisclosed underground utilities. If this is the Owners intention, 

please supply us with drawing depicting all utilities currently located within City 

R.O.W. along Foster Avenue from N. Pulaski Ave. to N Francisco Ave., 

including all cross street intersection. 

 

Answer: See Item 5. 

 

7. Question: In Specification 01535 – Settlement Monitoring, Article 1.01.C.4 

states “The City may also direct the Contractor to furnish, install, monitor and 

maintain additional ground and structure monitoring points at any time. 

Q4.1: Will the Contractor be reimbursed by the City for this additional work?” 

 

Answer: Yes, the contractor will be reimbursed for additional work related to 

adding additional monitoring points. 

 

8. Question: Proposal page 20 unit price item #10 Excavation & disposal of 

contaminated soil material (see attached). Book 3 page 01025-5 par. K-5 states 

that the price shall include all required manifesting and other documentation as 

well. Please confirm that CDOT or its representative will certify & sign any 

transportation document as the generator of this material.   

 

Answer: CDOT or its representative will certify and sign any transportation 

document as the generator of this material. 

 

9. Question: Par. K1 and par K5 state that the measurement will include the 

EXCAVATION of this material. Please confirm that the unit price for this 1,000 

cy of material should include the EXCAVATION of this material. If this item is 

to include the excavation of this quantity of material how do we get paid for the 

excavation of the material if the material is clean?  

 

Answer: Excavation cost for all excavated soil material is included in the lump 

sum price for Payment Item No 1.  The payment item for EXCAVATION AND 

DISPOSAL OF CONTAMINATED SOIL MATERIAL will include any 

“additional excavation / handling” costs required for contaminated materials. 

 

 

10. Question: In Book One Section VIII Personal, Article H.2 states” If funding 

under this contract is $100,000 or more., Contractor and all subcontractors that 

perform work on the site on the construction project under taken pursuant to this 

contract shall comply with the minimum percentage of total worker hours perform 

3d by eligible residents of the City of Chicago as specified in  2-92- 330 of the 

Municipal code  and rules and regulations adopted thereunder, unless otherwise 



prohibited by law. 7.5% of the total work hours must be performed by project area 

residents and 50% of the total work hours must be performed by city residents 

unless the Chief Procurement Officer determines otherwise. 

Question:  Will this provision be waived prior to bid time? It is our understanding 

that if this requirement is not waived prior to bid time, the Contractor must meet 

these requirements or it will be assessed a penalty of .05% the contract value for 

each percentage point of shortfall toward the stipulated residency requirements. 

 

Answer:  The vendor is required by contract and City ordinance to comply with 

these requirements. 

 

11. Question: Contract Grouting, Paragraph a; establishes that the amount of inflow 

into the tunnel and shafts is limited to 1.0 GPM. We believe that this is an 

unrealistic and un-achievable standard. We do not believe that this 

standard has been met on any of the existing TARP tunnels constructed by the 

Metropolitan Water Reclamation District of Greater Chicago. 

Application of this standard shall result in the addition of very large costs into the 

various Contractors proposals. ASTM Specification C969, Article 8.1.1 provides 

for an infiltration limit of 200 gallons I inch of internal diameter/ mile of sewer/ 

24 hour day. The application of this standard produces an infiltration rate of 

approximately 35 GPM. We request that this infiltration specification be reviewed 

and revised. 

 

Answer: See Item 6 in Addendum No 2 section. 

 

12. Question: In the Instructions and Execution of Documents - Pre Bid Conference, 

the contact information (FAX number) is incorrect. Please amend this section 

with current information. 

 

Answer: (312) 744-5611 

 

13. Question: In reference to the drawings for the Inlet Channel, it is unclear if the 

steel components are to have a protective coating system. The relevant drawings 

and details are indicated below: 

a. S110 and Slll -Wale/Strut and Trashrack and Grating support system 

b. S112 - Detail 1- Fall protection pipe. 

c. S116 - Detail 3, the 3/8 bent plate on top of the sheet piles and closure plates. 

d. S117 - Ladder 

e. S118 - Ladder below Elevation +9.3. 

 

Answer: See Item 8.  

 

For Item a. Waler/Strut, Grating supports, use System(102) ploymide epoxy. For 

Item b. Fall protection pipe is covered under Structural steel, use System 102. for 

Item c. Details 3  on S116 use System 102. for Item d. Ladders shall be 

galvanized in accordance with ASTM A123. for Item e. Lower ladder shall be 

galvanized in accordance with ASTM A123.   

 



14. Question: Drawing S205, Section B contains a note to "SEE C-003 FOR SHEET 

PIL(E] DETAILS". We see no such drawing.  

 

Answer:  See Item 1 under DRAWINGS.   

 

 

15. Question: Please reference drawing S201, Plan EL -0.2. The plan shows PZC-13 

Sheet Pile Walls. These sheet pile walls are not shown along the inside faces of 

the concrete wing wall footings. Therefore, they would not provide a continuous 

wall in which to perform construction in the dry. 

a. Is it the Engineer's intent that the sheet pile shown here be left in place and that 

the Contractor is to provide, and remove, additional sheet pile in order to perform 

the construction? 

b. The rip-rap specifications discuss a compacted, level, and self-draining 

subgrade. Therefore, it appears that temporary sheet pile (or other means of water 

cut-off) would be required beyond the concrete structure to encompass the rip-rap 

work. If  this is the case, are the sheet pile wall shown on S201 still needed? 

 

Answer: a. Sheet S201 indicates the alignment of the sheet piles needed to 

mitigate scour and retain the backfill for the wing walls. Other sheet piles added 

for means and method of construction are not included in the lump sum of the 

permanent works. It will be up to the Contractor if he wishes to salvage any of the 

temporary supports without impacting the permanent works during removal.   

b. The Contractor is responsible to furnish and install the sheet pile wall as 

indicated on the drawings. The sheet piles are required by design to resist scour 

and retain earthfill, and not water cutoff . 

 

16. Question: Specification Section 03300-1.04.C.11 calls for a Thermal Control 

Plan for all placement over 18", including locations of temperature sensors, etc. 

However, Section 1.05.A defines Mass Concrete as dimensions exceed 28" that 

require measures be taken to cope with heat of hydration. Please confirm that 28" 

is the minimum dimension where thermal control plans will be needed. 

 

Answer: See Item 7. 

 

17. Question: Specification Book 3 Table of Contents page 3 & 4 under the 

REPORTS heading (see attached). We are not able to locate the 44 pages of the 

HYDRAULIC REPORT either in the specs or the drawings. Can you please 

provide this data?  

 

Answer: See Item 9. 

 

18. Question: It is requested that the bid date be extended by three (3) weeks to allow 

for a more detailed investigation of the Contract Documents and the Project Site 

that will ultimately result in the City of Chicago receiving more competitive bids 

for performing the work. 

 

Answer:  Bid opening has been rescheduled for August 27, 2015, 11:00 a.m. 

Central Time. 



 

19. Question: It is requested that the project duration of 730 calendar days be 

increased by at least 180 calendar days to account for the procurement of the 

tunnel boring machine and other equipment. The extension will eliminate an 

increase cost to the City from Contractors covering possible liquidated damages 

in their bid price. 

 

Answer:  The project duration will not be changed and remains 730 days. 

 

20. Question: Plan Sheet S205 both Sections A and B direct you to reference 

Drawing C-003 for sheet pile details, will the Engineer be issuing this drawing? If 

so, when? 

 

Answer:  See Item 1 under DRAWINGS.   

 

21. Question: Note 3 on sheet S312 states that “tunnel lining for TBM excavation 

sections shall not have any reinforcing bars, except otherwise indicated”.  

Sheet GT013 section A shows reinforcing steel but section C on sheet S312 does 

not ? Please clarify if the concrete lining for the TBM excavations sections are to 

include reinforcing steel. If so, please designate the areas to include the reinf. 

steel.   

 

Answer: Section A on Sheet GT013 provides instructions for contact grouting for 

the tunnel section with and without reinforcement. Tunnel reinforcement is only 

required for the drill and blast sections of tunnel. The Contractor shall refer to the 

instructions on Note 3, Sheet GT 013 for tunnel reinforcement.   The tunnel at the 

inlet side will not have reinforcement. The tunnel at the outlet side will have 

reinforcement for only the drill and blasted section. 

 

 

 

 

End of Addendum #1 


